
HC Eggers
Member of the Ward 21 Committee
Stellenbosch Municipality

13 July 2021

Dear Councillor Badenhorst,

after a long pause, I can finally return to the questions arising from the logging activity in
Paradyskloof pine plantation between October 2020 and March 2021. While my comments and
questions refer to Paradyskloof plantation, they also apply to the equivalent Botmaskop planta-
tion logging which happened during the same time by the same external service provider, Toncu
(Pty) Ltd under the same contract.

1. A quick reminder as to the timeline: There is a long email trail starting in August 2020,
continuing to emails about the wind-blown pinetrees on 2 October 2020, an email on 29
October 2020 and again on 7 March 2021 about the logging of pinetrees which were NOT
blown over but cut off anyway. This led to us discussing the matter briefly in the Ward 21
Committee meeting of 6 April 2021 (see our minutes and the transcript), following which
I sent you an email with specific questions on 6 April. I am leaving out the emails of 6-9
April and just quote the original explanation of Ms T Leibrandt of approximately 11 or 12
April 2021. It reads:

From: Tammy Leibrandt

To: Albert van der Merwe <Albert.vanderMerwe@stellenbosch.gov.za>

Subject: [EX] Logging in Paradyskloof pine plantation

Good day Albert,

This process was a Transparent Process with the guidance of SCM.

This work was advertised as a Quotation for the Sales of Timber as per SCM

procedures.

The contractor appointed was TONCU PTY (LTD).

The contractor was appointed to remove dead and dangerous trees at

Paradyskloof Plantation and Botmaskop Plantation

The funds generated from this project was paid into the municipality’s bank

account. Attached is the summary of funds paid into the municipality’s

account.

The project is completed and biomass will be removed as soon the hired truck

is delivered. It is important to note that the section Environmental

Implementation does not have a truck to collect biomass from the areas.

Kind regards,

Tammy Leibrandt

Manager: Environmental Management

Directorate: Community and Protection Services

2. Also attached to those emails of 12 April 2021 were the spreadsheet of payments made
and a PDF file called “SPECIFICATIONS.pdf” which constitute a “RFQ” (Request For
Quotation) which I have therefore renamed as 201008-paradyskloof-logging-rfq.pdf. A copy
of that RFQ/FQ document appears at the end of this email.
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3. On 16 April, I had replied to you saying that “Unfortunately the type and content of the
material provided in answer is far from satisfactory”. Back then, I did not have time to
study the relevant supply chain management laws and regulations and policies, but I have
done so now. I have also been in contact with the university’s Department of Forestry to
give me a better understanding of some of the issues involved.

4. Regarding the spreadsheet provided by T Leibrandt which I queried in June: Thank you for
the response of 1 June after the query submitted by me on behalf of the Ward 21 Committee.
We therefore agree that a total amount of R853,158.37 was paid into municipal accounts by
Toncu (Pty) Ltd starting on 27 October 2020 and ending on 24 March 2021.

5. Based on all that work, here are the follow-up questions. Would you please be so kind
to forward them for answering to the relevant officials involved ie Ms T Leibrandt (the
Environmental Manager) as well as Mr Albert van der Merwe, Mr Gary Boshoff and Mr
Maindren Chettiar, who all three co-signed the FQ on 8 October 2020, just six days after
the trees were uprooted by the wind on 1-2 October 2020.

6. The FQ provided only has a handwritten “Toncu (Pty) Ltd)” on the last page, plus what
looks like the signature of the director of Toncu, Elton Makovere. MSCMP paragraph
17(1)(a) requires that quotations must be obtained from at least three different providers.
What are the details of the other service providers and their quotations?

7. MSCMP paragraph 17(1)(c) states that, if it is not possible to obtain at least three quota-
tions, the reasons must be recorded and approved by the CFO. Was this done, and what
were the reasons given?

8. The FQ in item 1. states that “The purpose of this quotation is to recommend the appoint-
ment for a suitable service provider for the emergency work in Paradyskloof Plantation and
Botmaskop Plantation.” The term “emergency” is defined in the Municipal SCM Policy
(“MSCMP”) paragraph 1.1.11. Of the eight reasons for an emergency, only 1.1.11(a) would
be appropriate, “the possibility of human injury or death”.

9. Also, the FQ itself states in item 4b) that the work is to be completed within 7 days, ie by 15
October 2020, so the three signatories considered one week to be long enough to handle the
emergency work. Clearly there was no emergency after the end of November 2020
at the latest, by the text of the FQ itself. If there really had been an emergency or the
possibility of human injury or death after November 2020, then the municipal department
should have sealed off the area for those four months rather than allowing thousands of
people to cycle and walk through there.

10. Given that there really was no emergency after the end of the 7 days referredt to in the
FQ, why did logging then continue for a further four months until February or
even March 2021 even while thousands of people walked around the plantation
during that time?

11. An “emergency” is invoked by paragraph 36(1)(a)(i) in cases where it is necessary to “de-
viate” from normal SCM policy. Paragraph 19 of the MSCMP as well as the MFMA SCM
regulations specify that any amount over R200,000 can only be awarded after a compet-
itive bid process has been conducted, including open tendering and a bid adjudication
committee as spelt out in detail in Paragraphs 19 to 28 of the MSCMP. The amount of
R853,158.37 paid in by Toncu (Pty) Ltd into municipal accounts far exceeds the threshold
of R200,000.

12. The MSCMP Paragraphs 19 to 29 set out in detail the rules for competitive bidding processes
which apply to all asset transfers and procurements above R200,000. Was the process set
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out in paragraphs 19 to 29 followed? If so, why was a simple RFQ provided to
the ward committee rather than a proper tender specification document? The
RFQ is clearly irrelevant given that there was no emergency and that the total amount far
exceeded R200,000. The ward committee should see the competitive bid documentation
related to the Paradyskloof and Botmaskop logging.

13. Alternatively, if no such competitive bid process was followed: Section 36(1)(b) of the
MSCMP allows the Municipal Manager to ratify any “minor breaches of the procurement
processes... which are purely of a technical nature”. Does the Municipality claim that
the use of a RFQ with a 7-day limit to do logging over four months to a to-
tal value of at least R853,158.37 constitutes a “minor breach” which is “purely
technical in nature”?

14. Both paragraph 36(2) of the MSCMP as well as Regulation 12 of the MFMA Municipal
Asset Transfer Regulations of 2008 require that the Municipal Manager must “record the
reasons for any deviation in terms of subparagraph (1)(a) or (b) must be reported to the
next meeting of the council.” I can find no such report of a deviation in the council agendas
between November 2020 and May 2021. Was a deviation regarding the misuse of the
RFQ for non-emergency purposes ever reported to Council, and if so, where and
when?

15. I have pointed out several times by email, including on 1 November 2020 and 7 March 2021,
that not only fallen or damaged pinetrees were being logged but also healthy ones. Photos
were sent. There is also clear evidence that often the thickest healthy trees were logged
while nearby thin ones were left standing. How can the logging of a large number of
non-fallen non-damaged pines be justified in terms of the RFQ?

16. According to the spreadhseet supplied and the RFQ, the total volume of wood that was
removed was equal to R853,158.37 divided by the Toncu quoted rate of R667/m3, in other
words 1279 cubic metres of wood was logged by Toncu. Is this the correct total volume
of wood taken out in the course of both Paradyskloof and Botmaskop logging?
Where are these volumes recorded, and who recorded them?

17. Why was the RFQ written in first place, given that there are standard municipal
tariffs in place for small amounts of logging? The attached extract from the 2020/2021
tariffs shows that VAT-inclusive tariffs for Class C and Class D “Industrial Roundwood”
could be put out at tariffs of R707.87 and R764.05 per cubic metre with NO NEED for
any formal contract? These amounts are considerably higher than the R667/m3 offered by
Toncu.

This is a breach of the MFMA Asset Transfer Regulations valuation principle (Regulation
3), which require that the Municipality must “attach a value to the transfer or disposal of a
municipal capital asset, in order to ensure that the interests of the municipality or municipal
entity and of its stakeholders are not prejudiced by the transfer or disposal.”

Put simply, it is the duty of the Municipality to fetch as high a price as possible for its assets,
including logged pines. Clearly that has not happened here, since the municipality’s own
tariffs are higher than the noncompetitive rate of R667 at which Toncu paid the municipality.

18. Biomass removal: Contrary to the claims in the email by T Leibrandt of 12 April 2021,
no biomass has been removed at all even now in June 2021. There are hundreds of tons of
biomass still lying around everywhere, including large logs. With regard to this biomass:

� When will that removal be carried out?
� What is the total estimated cost of such removal?
� Who carries the cost of such biomass removal?
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� Why does the Municipality not make use of its chippers which it used to have to do
the job?

� Must such removal costs be deducted from the net profit of the logging sale?

19. There must be an “asset transfer agreement” in place with regard to transfer of municipal
assets (see Regulation 17 of the MFMA Asset Transfer Regulations). Does this asset
transfer agreement between the Municipality and Toncu exist? What exactly
does it say on the above issues?

I look forward to a quick resolution to all these matters, which should be simple.

Thank you,

HC Eggers
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A FQ Specifications and FQ signed on 8 October 2020
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B Extract from 2020-2021 municipal tariff book
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Birthday parties, creches & school events, religious events, festivals, markets, cycling events
Event =  one (1)day or if otherwise stated. All applications in writing.
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